LLC Operating Agreement

- This document is the fundamental agreement behind your Limited Liability Corporation. This one is in plain-English as much as possible – reading it through should be self-explanatory
- Many banks require this document when opening a business checking account

NOTICE:

We wish we could provide an agreement that was tailored exactly to your business. While this is not always possible, we feel that we've come very close and that this document provides you with the head-start that you need to get your deal moving. Nevertheless, we must make this disclaimer:

- Do Not Use This Agreement 'As-Is.'
- This Agreement Is Not Legal Advice.
- Read it Thoroughly and Make All Appropriate Changes to Fit Your Requirements.
- You Should Have this Agreement Reviewed and Approved by a Qualified Attorney at Law Before Using It.
- JIAN Accepts No Liability for the Effectiveness of This Document For Your Purposes.
- ❖ Free Access to Attorneys, Accountants & Consultants in Your Area
- We're building a network of business experts who are eager to help you when you need it. They can review your work, make suggestions, handle unique situations and introduce you to influential people. On our website you can search by expertise and location, then e-mail or jump straight to their website. Although they are professionals and charge for their services, most offer an initial consultation free of charge. They're in your area and you can contact them directly. Look in our website under Expert Referral Network.
- Ongoing Update Service Keeps You Current
- Things change, laws change, the world changes... new ideas come along all the time. When you register, you can access our website to get updates and changes... like new and improved spreadsheets and documents. They can be downloaded directly to your computer. Look in our website under Updates.

Remember to bookmark our website:

www.JIAN.com

- The first and most gratifying thing to do is to use the Replace or Change function (usually under the Edit menu) and customize all items identified within the "[]" brackets with your information. To make sure your have filled in all the variables, use your word processors FIND function to locate and "[" which contain an uncompleted variable.
- Upon completion, delete all comments and any unnecessary blank lines that remain.
- You may format this document any way you like.

Agreement compliments of: The Law Firm of Burke & Reedy, www.washingtonpractice.com



THE MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS EVIDENCED BY THIS AGREEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR FOREIGN JURISDICTION AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED WITHOUT COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE OR FOREIGN SECURITIES LAWS.

Operating Agreement Of [Company], LLC

Α

[State]

Limited Liability Company

Table of Contents

Section 1:	Formation, Name, Purpose, Term And Definitions	5
Section 2:	Members, Percentage Interests, Capital Contributions	5
Section 3:	Classes And Interests, Extraordinary Actions, Dilution	6
Section 4:	Distribution Of Cash & Proceeds; Allocations Of Tax Items	7
Section 5:	Management Of The Company	8
Section 6:	Rights, Duties And Representations Of Members	13
Section 7:	Transfer Of Interests	14
Section 8:	Cessation Of Membership	16
Section 9:	Dissolution And Winding Up	17
Section 10:	Indemnification Of The Managers	18
Section 11:	Power Of Attorney For Limited Purposes	18
Section 12:	Amendment	19
Section 13:	Miscellaneous Provisions	19
Counterpart S	Signature Page To Operating Agreement	21
Exhibit A:	Capital Contribution	22
Exhibit B:	Definitions	23
Exhibit C:	Tax Allocations	28
Execution Pa	ge	32

Section 1: Formation, Name, Purpose, Term & Definitions

Section 1.1 Formation. The parties to this Agreement hereby enter into a written Operating Agreement pursuant to the [State] Limited Liability Company Act (the "Act"), to set forth the terms and conditions of their joint undertaking as Members of the Company, and to carry out the purposes of the Company as further described herein, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the laws of the State of [State].

Section 1.2 Name. The name of the Company is [Company], LLC. The Company's business shall be conducted under said name, the name "[Company]," and/or such other names as the Manager may from time to time deem necessary or advisable, provided that necessary filings under applicable assumed or fictitious name statutes are first obtained.

Section 1.3 Offices & Resident Agent. The name and address of the Resident Agent of the Company in the State of [State] is:

[Owner/Founder], [Address], [City], [State] [zip code].

The principal office of the Company shall be:

[Address], [City], [State] [zip code],

or such other location as the Manager may, from time to time, designate by notice to the Members.

Section 1.4 Purpose. The purpose and business of the Company shall be to...

[develop and distribute multi-media business productivity tools through software, seminars, audio/video, and published works.]

Section 1.5 Term. The term of the Company commenced on [Date], upon the acceptance for filing of the Articles of Organization of the Company by the [State] Corporation Commission, and shall have a perpetual existence, unless earlier dissolved in accordance with Section 9.1 of this Agreement.

Section 1.6 Defined Terms. The defined terms used in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, shall have the meanings specified herein or as set forth in Exhibit B, which is attached hereto.

Section 2: Members, Percentage Interests, Capital Contributions

Section 2.1 Members: Exhibit A. The names, addresses, Capital Contributions and Percentage Interests of all Members shall be designated in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto. The Manager shall cause Exhibit A to be amended from time to time to reflect the withdrawal of one or more Members or the admission of one or more additional Members. As of the date of the execution of this Agreement, there are no Class B or Class C Members. Class A Members shall be admitted in accordance with Section 3.1 hereof. Class B Members shall be admitted in accordance with Section 3.2 hereof. Class C Members shall be admitted to the Company in accordance with Section 3.3 hereof.

Section 2.2 Capital Contributions. On or prior to the date of this Agreement, each existing Member shall make a Capital Contribution to the Company in an amount set forth opposite such Member's name in Exhibit A.

Section 2.3 Class A Members. [Owner/Founder], and [Founder2] own all of the outstanding Class A membership Units. See Exhibit A for a list of the Members of the Company.

Section 2.4 Conversion of Class A Interests. Subject to the limitations set forth below in Section 3.6 of this Operating Agreement, the Manager shall have the right, at any time and from time to time, to admit one or more additional Class A Members upon such terms and conditions as the Manager shall determine in their sole discretion, provided that they obtains the prior unanimous written consent of the existing Class A Members.

Section 2.5 Minimum Interest of the Manager. A Manager shall not be required to own an Interest in

the Company.

Section 2.6 Additional Capital Liability of Members. No Member shall have any obligation to contribute capital to the Company except to the extent of the Capital Contribution of such Member described in this Section 2. No Member of the Company shall have any obligation or duty to advance or loan funds to the Company for the purpose of satisfying liabilities of the Company or any operating or carrying costs associated with the Company's business. No Member shall be personally liable for the obligations of the Company, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, solely by reason of being a Member of the Company.

Section 2.7 No Interest. No interest shall be paid or due by or from the Company on any contributions to the capital of the Company, or any advances made by a Member to the Company.

Section 2.8 Indebtedness to Members. Any indebtedness of the Company owed to a Member shall provide that the payment of principal and interest (if any) shall be made only if, and to the extent that, payment of a distribution to the Member could then be made under applicable provisions of the Act without the imposition on the Member of any liability for repayment to the Company.

Section 2.9 Withdrawal of Capital by Interest Holders. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, prior to the liquidation of the Company no Interest Holder shall have the right to require the return of his/her/its Capital Contribution or the balance of his/her/its Capital Account. There is no agreed upon time when the Capital Contribution of an Interest Holder is to be returned. No Interest Holder shall have any right to demand and receive property, in lieu of cash, in return of his/her/its Capital Account. Provided, however, the Company shall have the option to distribute property in lieu of cash in the event the Company does not have cash resources available to it for such purpose.

Section 3: Classes & Interests, Extraordinary Actions, Dilution

Section 3.1 Admission of Class A Members. Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 3.6 hereof, the Manager shall have the right, at any time and from time to time, to admit one or more additional Class A Members upon such terms and conditions as the Manager shall determine in its sole discretion, provided that it obtains the prior written consent of a Majority in Interest of all the Class A Members, and any such Person receiving Class A Interests shall make a Capital Contribution to the Company (in cash or other property) corresponding to the fair value of such Interest, as determined in the sole discretion of the Manager.

Section 3.2 Admission of Class B Members. Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section 3.2 and in Section 3.6 hereof, the Manager shall have the right at any time and from time to time to admit one or more additional Class B Members and/or to sell or award additional Class B Interests (or rights to acquire additional Class B Interests) to Persons who are employed by or otherwise have benefited the Company, upon such terms and conditions as determined in the sole discretion of the Manager.

Section 3.3 Admission of Class C Members. Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section 3.3 and in Section 3.6 hereof, the Manager shall have the right at any time and from time to time to admit one or more Class C Members and/or to sell additional Class C Interests (or rights to acquire additional Class C Interests), provided that any such Person receiving Class C Interests shall make a Capital Contribution to the Company (in cash or other property) corresponding to the fair value of such Interest, as determined in the sole discretion of the Manager.

Section 3.4 Conditions for New Members. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, no Person at any time shall be admitted as a Member of the Company unless: The Person delivers to the Company a written instrument agreeing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement, as it may have been amended from time to time; and the admission of such Person as a Member will not result in the termination of the Company.

Section 3.5 Extraordinary Actions. Subject to the limitations set forth in Sections 3.6 and 3.7 hereof,

the Manager shall have the right at any time, in their sole discretion, and upon such terms and conditions as they shall determine in their sole discretion, provided they obtain the prior written consent of a Majority in Interest of the Class A Members, to cause the Company to: (1) Convert from a limited liability company to a corporation; and (2) Engage in a public offering of its securities; transfer a substantial portion of its other assets not in the ordinary course of business; or incur any debt in any single transaction in excess of the greater of (a) One Hundred Thousand U.S. Dollars (\$100,000), or (b) the accumulated capital and reserves of the Company.

In the event of the occurrence of any of the actions described in this Section 3.5, all Members hereby covenant to cooperate fully and timely with such action and to take any and all actions and execute any and all documents necessary or appropriate to effectuate such action. In the event the Company converts to a corporation and the Manager, in their sole discretion, determines that the Company should be taxed as an S corporation for federal and applicable state income tax purposes, all Members hereby covenant to cooperate fully and timely with such election and to take any and all actions and execute any and all documents necessary or appropriate to effectuate such election.

Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall be construed to restrict or otherwise limit the exercise by any Member, upon the occurrence of such a transaction, of such rights as may be provided to Members under the Act or under other applicable statutes.

Section 3.6 Dilution & Percentage Interest of the Classes. All Interests of all classes shall be diluted on a Pro Rata Basis to the extent Interests of any and all classes are added or increased in accordance with this Section 3, including without limitation a dilution resulting from a private or public offering of securities.

Section 3.7 Merger or Consolidation. A Majority in Interest of the Members shall be required to approve whether the Company should be acquired by or otherwise enter into a merger or consolidation transaction with another limited liability company, or with a limited partnership, a corporation, or a business trust having transferable units of beneficial interest, regardless of whether the Company is the surviving entity of such transaction.

Section 4: Distribution of Cash & Proceeds; Allocations of Tax Items

Section 4.1 Allocation of Net Available Cash Flow. The Company shall allocate 80% of the Net Available Cash Flow to Class C Members until such time as the Class C Members' are allocated an amount equal to 100% of their investment in the Company plus an annualized rate of 12% per year, and thereafter, the Members shall be allocated a pro-rata share of the Net Available Cash Flow of the Company based upon their allocable share of ownership in the Company. Notwithstanding this Section 4.1, the Manager shall have the right to modify the distribution of Net Available Cash Flow with the prior written consent of a Majority in Interest of all the Members.

Section 4.2 Distribution of Net Available Cash Flow. The Company shall distribute Net Available Cash Flow to Members at the sole discretion of the Manager. The Company shall be required to make distributions to Members sufficient to enable each Member to pay taxes on allocations to them of Net Available Cash Flow of the Company.

Section 4.3 Net Capital Proceeds. Net Capital Proceeds, if any, shall be distributed on a Pro Rata Basis among all of the Interest Holders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 4.3 shall not apply to any distributions made in connection with a termination of the Company, which distributions shall be governed by Section 9.3 hereof.

Section 4.4 Acknowledgment. All of the Members hereby acknowledge that no distribution of Available Cash Flow or Net Capital Proceeds pursuant to this Section 4 shall be made to the Members to the extent that the Manager determine, in their sole discretion, that all or a portion of such funds are necessary for the payment of or due provision for the (a) liabilities of the Company to all creditors, including the expenses of a Capital Transaction, and/or (b) additional requirements for funds in

connection with the Company's business.

Section 4.5 Capital Accounts & Tax Allocations. A separate Capital Account shall be maintained for each Interest Holder. Each Capital Account shall be adjusted annually, unless this Agreement, the acts of the Members in accordance with this Agreement, or the applicable Regulations require a more frequent adjustment. The maintenance of Capital Accounts and allocation of the Company's tax items shall follow the provisions of Exhibit C, attached hereto; provided, however, that the Company at all times shall conform to the requirements of any Regulations issued with respect to the maintenance of Capital Accounts and the allocation of tax items. The Company shall exercise its best efforts to take all actions necessary to cause the allocation of tax items among the Interest Holders to reflect the actual and anticipated allocation of the Company's distributions, as set forth in this Section 4 and in Section 9.3 hereof, in conformity with the Capital Account maintenance requirements contained in the Regulations.

Section 5: Management of the Company

Section 5.1 Appointment of Manager: Executive Employment. The Members hereby appoint [Owner/Founder] as the Manager of the Company. The Managers may enter into employment agreements with the Company further delineating the duties, rights, compensation and covenants of the Manager. Any employment agreements shall be read in conjunction with this Agreement.

Section 5.2 Exclusive Authority of Manager. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement and any Manager's employment agreement, the exclusive responsibility for managing the business and affairs of the Company is hereby granted to the Manager pursuant to the Act. Each of the Members appoints and authorizes the Manager to serve as the sole agent of the Company, (except to the extent that certain discretionary acts may be delegated by the Manager to certain executive employees of the Company). The Manager may exercise all powers of the Company and do all such lawful acts necessary to manage the affairs and operations of the Company as are not by statute, regulations, the Articles of Organization, or other applicable documentation required to be exercised or done by any of the other Members. Any Person dealing with the Manager shall be authorized to rely upon the authority of the Manager to bind the Company in accordance with the rights, powers and duties described in this Agreement. The Manager shall be an "Authorized Person" of the Company, and shall be authorized to execute or file any document required or permitted to be executed or filed on behalf of the Company, or to otherwise act as an agent of the Company, as provided under the Act.

Section 5.3 Binding Authority with Respect to Documents. The Manager shall have the right, power and authority, acting at all times for and on behalf of the Company, to enter into and execute any agreement or agreements, promissory note or notes, and any other instruments or documents, and to undertake and do all acts necessary to carry out the purposes for which the Company was formed. In no event shall a party dealing with the Company with respect to any document signed or action undertaken on behalf of the Company have the right to inquire into:

- The necessity or expediency of any act or action of the Manager; or
- Personal information of a Manager if the Manager is a natural person; or
- Any act or failure to act by the Company; or
- The identities of Members other than the Manager; or
- The existence or non-existence of any fact or facts that constitute conditions precedent to acts by the Manager (including, without limitation, conditions, provisions and other requirements herein set forth relating to borrowing and the execution of any encumbrances to secure the borrowing) or that are in any other manner germane to the affairs of the Company.
- Any and every Person relying upon any document signed or action taken by the Manager on behalf of the Company or claiming thereunder may conclusively presume that (i) at the time or times of the execution and/or delivery thereof, this Agreement was in full force and effect, (ii) any instrument or document was duly executed in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and is binding upon the Company without requiring the approval or consent of any of the Members thereof, and (iii) the Manager was duly authorized and empowered to execute and deliver any and every such instrument or document for and on behalf of the Company.

Section 5.4 Specific Authority. In furtherance and not in limitation of the provisions of Section 5.2 hereof and of the other provisions of this Agreement, but subject to any limitations contained in this Agreement (including without limitation Section 3.7 hereof) and a Manager's employment agreement, the Manager is specifically authorized and empowered, in Manager's sole discretion, without regard to the approval thereof by the Members, to:

- a. Direct the employees of the Company to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all documents, agreements, notes, contracts, bank resolutions, signature cards, releases, or other instruments on the Company's behalf;
- b. Make any and all decisions that the Company may be entitled and/or required to make under the terms of any and all documents, agreements (including employment agreements), or other instruments relative to the ownership, operation, management and supervision of the Company's business:
- c. Execute for and on behalf of the Company, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, deeds absolute, mortgages (which term "mortgages" is hereby defined for all purposes of this Agreement to include Deeds of Trust, financing statements, chattel mortgages, pledges, conditional sales contracts, and similar security instruments), leases, contracts, promissory notes, or other legal documents all of which instruments so duly executed as provided herein shall be valid and binding upon the Company;
- d. Cause the Company to incur indebtedness or obtain financing (including without limitation loans from Members or Affiliates of Members at competitive rates); to issue promissory notes or other evidences of indebtedness; to prepay in whole or in part, recast, increase, modify, or extend any liabilities affecting the business of the Company and assumed in connection therewith; to provide security or collateral in connection with any Company indebtedness or to encumber or pledge any Company assets; to execute any extensions or renewals of encumbrances with respect to any assets used in the Company's business; and to confess judgment on behalf of the Company in connection with any Company borrowings;
- e. Cause the Company to enter into leases of real or personal property in furtherance of any or all of the purposes of the Company;
- f. Cause the Company to purchase real property or personal property and to make reasonable and necessary capital expenditures and improvements with respect to such property for use in connection with the operation and management of the Company's business; to finance such purchases or expenditures, in whole or in part, by giving the seller or any other Person a security interest in the property purchased;
- g. Cause the Company to sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of any or all of the assets of the Company, or enter into any Capital Transaction involving the assets or business of the Company, including any or all of the components of the Company's business, whether such components are real property, personal property, or intellectual property, mixed or intangible, such as goodwill, if any;
- h. Cause the Company to redeem or acquire the Interest of any Interest Holder pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or pursuant to the Manager's authority hereunder, and to exercise any options or other rights with respect to the Interest of any Interest Holder, on behalf of the Company or for the Manager's own account;
- Open accounts and deposit and maintain funds in the name of the Company in banks, savings and loan associations, money market funds, or such other financial instruments as the Manager deems necessary or appropriate;
- j. Pay all costs or expenses connected with the operation or management of the Company, including all debts and other obligations of the Company, from its bank accounts by check or other customary means (without commingling with the funds of any other Person);

- k. Establish reserves in such amounts as the Manager shall deem appropriate;
- 1. Enter into, perform and carry out contracts with any Person, including any of the Members or Affiliates of the Members, at reasonably competitive rates of compensation for the performance of any and all services that may at any time be necessary, proper, convenient or advisable to carry on the Company's business, including entering into exclusive and non-exclusive arrangements;
- m. Monitor the quality of services and products provided by vendors to the Company, and add, discharge, or replace such vendors as needed in accordance with applicable state law;
- n. Appoint and discharge executive employees of the Company and delegate specific duties and authority to Persons who may or may not be employees of the Company;
- o. Employ or engage Persons in the operation and management of the Company's business, on such terms and for such reasonable compensation as the Manager shall determine (at arm's length prices and in keeping with comparable salaries for comparable work), in good faith, to be appropriate and in the best interests of the Company;
- p. Approve the hiring and firing of all employees and agents of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of any employment policies and procedures of the Company, and subject to the terms of this Agreement, any other written agreements and applicable state law;
- q. Evaluate the performance of all employees and agents of the Company, including its executive employees, and monitor the quality of services provided by employees and agents of the Company;
- r. Establish and monitor the compensation requirements (reasonable compensation set at arm's length prices and in keeping with comparable salaries for comparable work) of all employees and agents of the Company, including its executive employees;
- s. Apply for, make proffers and commitments with regard to and obtain any and all governmental permits, approvals, licenses necessary and appropriate in connection with or in anyway related to the Company's business;
- t. Place and carry public liability, workmen's compensation, fire, extended coverage, business interruptions, errors and omissions and such other insurance as may be necessary or appropriate for the protection of the interests and property of the Company;
- u. Authorize the lending of money by the Company at prevailing interest rates, including lending to borrowers who may be Members or Affiliates of Members of the Company;
- v. Initiate, settle and defend legal actions on behalf of the Company, including any litigation, arbitration, mediation, examination, investigation, inquiry, regulatory proceeding, or other similar matter contemplated by the Company, threatened by any Person or in or with which the Company may become involved;
- w. Submit a claim or liability involving the Company to arbitration;
- x. Prepare, maintain, file and disseminate returns, reports, statements, and other information for distribution to the Internal Revenue Service, the state of [State], Franchise Tax Board or Secretary of State, the Members and for submission to any governmental or regulatory authority or agency;
- y. Deal directly with relevant state and United States regulatory authorities on behalf of the Company and render decisions with respect to matters involving such authorities;
- z. Cause the Company to create one or more wholly or partially owned domestic or foreign subsidiaries, which may be corporations, limited liability companies or other forms of business entities;
- aa. Enter into agreements with Members as appropriate; and
- bb. Generally, do all things consistent with any and all of the foregoing on behalf of the Company.

Section 5.5 Obligations of the Managers. The Manager shall take all actions that may be necessary or appropriate (i) for the continuation of the Company's valid existence as a limited liability company under the applicable state laws; (ii) for the operation, management and supervision of the Company's business in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and applicable laws and regulations.

The Manager shall oversee the preparation, review, and safekeeping of the Company's records and books of accounts of all operations, receipts and expenditures of the Company, and shall institute and maintain such internal controls as may be required to comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the Company.

The Manager shall deliver to the Members copies of "Information Tax Returns" required under applicable Federal or state income tax laws, including the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as soon as such return may reasonably be prepared, but not later than the due date of such return as may be extended pursuant to statutory or administrative provision. Such returns shall reflect the allocation of the profits or losses of the Company and other tax items as provided in this Agreement to each Member for the Fiscal Year then ended and shall serve as the annual accounting report to be provided to the Interest Holders. The cost of all such reports shall be paid by the Company at the Company's expense.

The Manager shall deliver copies of this Agreement, the Articles of Organization or any amendments thereto to each Member.

Section 5.6 No Duty to Consult. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Manager shall have no duty or obligation to consult with or seek the advice of the Members.

Section 5.7 Contracting on Behalf of the Company; Related Persons. The Manager, on behalf of the Company, may employ a Member, or a Person related to or affiliated with a Member, to render or perform a service, or may contract to buy property from, or sell property to, any such Member or other Person; provided, that (i) any such transaction shall be on terms that are fair and equitable to the Company, comparable to those charged by unrelated parties, and no less favorable to the Company than the terms, if any, known to be available from unrelated and unaffiliated Persons; and (ii) all parties with whom the Company contracts will of such qualifications to be consistent with the requirements and guidelines of applicable [State] law. The Manager may employ, engage, and contract with, on behalf of the Company, such Persons, firms or corporations as the Manager, in the Manager's discretion, shall deem advisable for the operation and management of the business of the Company, including such managing agents, attorneys, accountants, insurance brokers, appraisers, experts, consultants, and lenders, on such reasonable terms and for such reasonable compensation, as the Manager, in the Manager's discretion, shall determine. Any such Person, firm or corporation may include the Manager, or an Affiliate of the Manager, or entities otherwise employed or retained by the Manager or in which the Manager has an interest, provided the compensation paid is in accordance with normal fees charged by independent parties for similar services.

Section 5.8 Tax Elections. The Manager shall be authorized to take such actions as the Manager, in the Manager's discretion, deems necessary or desirable in order to comply with requirements of the Act as promulgated by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for the purposes of complying with Federal, local, and state tax requirements. The Manager shall have the power on behalf of the Company, to make, or to refrain from making, or to revoke, any elections and determinations referred to in the Act and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including, but not limited to the method(s) of depreciation, the amortization of organizational expenses, and the method of accounting to be employed by the Company. All elections shall be made by the Manager with the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), as applicable, in his or her sole discretion, in consideration of the advice of the Company's accountants and the underlying interests of the Interest Holders as a whole. In the event that evidence shall be provided that such election was or shall become disadvantageous to any one or more of the Interest Holders, such evidence shall not be deemed to be a demonstration of the commission of an act of willful misconduct or negligence on the part of the Manager. The Manager shall not be responsible to consider the impact on specific members in making any elections.

Section 5.9 Tax Matters Partner. [Owner/Founder] shall act as the "Tax Matters Partner" under the Internal Revenue code of 1986, as amended. The Tax Matters Partner shall, within fifteen (15) business days of receipt thereof, forward to each Member a photocopy of any correspondence relating to the Company received from the Internal Revenue Service that relates to matters that are of material importance to the Company and/or its Members. The Tax Matters Partner shall, within fifteen (15) business days thereof, advise each Member in writing of the substance of any conversation held with any representative of the Internal Revenue Service that relates to matters that are of material importance to the Company and/or such specific Members. Any reasonable costs incurred by the Tax Matters Partner for retaining accountants and/or attorneys on behalf of the Company in connection with any Internal Revenue Service inquiry or audit of the Company shall be charged as expenses of the Company. The Tax Matters Partner shall provide each Interest Holder with copies of any notices of judicial or administrative proceedings and any other information required by law. The Company expenses of such proceedings shall be paid by the Company out of its assets. With respect to any such matter, the Tax Matters Partner shall be entitled to make all decisions and enter into any agreements on behalf of the Company, which in his or her sole discretion are deemed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In any event, the Tax Matters Partner shall not be obligated to contest or otherwise challenge any adjustments made by the Internal Revenue Service. The Manager shall not be required to furnish additional funds to the Company for purposes of entering into or pursuing any proceedings on behalf of the Company. Each Member who elects to participate in any proceedings with respect to such matters shall be responsible for any expenses incurred by such Member in connection with such proceedings.

Section 5.10 Outside Activities. Subject to the provisions of any employment agreement, the Manager, on the Manager's own account or in conjunction with others, shall be authorized to engage in other business activities or possess interests in other ventures notwithstanding the Manager's duties and responsibilities as the Manager of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing restrictions, the Manager, and any Affiliates of the Manager, shall not be obligated to present to the Company any particular investment opportunity that may come to their attention even if such opportunity is of a character that might be suitable for investment by the Company or its Members.

Section 5.11 Resignation or Removal of Manager. At any time, [Owner/Founder] may resign as Manager upon giving at least ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other Members. Any successor Manager may resign upon giving at least ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other Members. A Manager may be removed as Manager only for cause, as defined in any employment agreement, as determined by the affirmative vote of the Class Members owning one hundred percent (100%) of the outstanding Membership Units of the Company as a group, including any Units owned by the Manager or the Manager's Affiliates. The withdrawal of the Manager shall be deemed to include:

- The death of the acting Manager;
- The dissolution of a corporate Manager (provided that, to the extent allowed under the Act and to the extent consistent with relevant Regulations, the inadvertent dissolution and loss of corporate charter by a corporate Manager shall not constitute a dissolution for purposes of this Agreement if its corporate status is reinstated with reasonable promptness after discovery of such loss of charter); or
- The dissolution of a Manager that is a partnership or another limited liability company. The effective date of a withdrawal under this Section 5.11 shall be the date of the event giving rise to the withdrawal.

Section 5.12 Replacement of Manager. In the event of the withdrawal of the Manager, the Members holding a majority of all the outstanding Class A Membership Units of the Company as a group, held by the Manager, may elect one or more successor Manager(s). Any powers exercisable by the Manager under this Agreement or otherwise shall be exercisable by any successor Manager(s). If a successor Manager is not elected, any powers conferred upon the Manager under this Agreement shall be exercisable by the Members pursuant to the Act. Other than as set forth in Section 5.11, the withdrawing Manager is not required to withdraw as a Member.

Section 6: Rights, Duties & Representations of Members

Section 6.1 No Authority to Act. In accordance with the Articles of Organization of the Company, no Member shall be an agent of the Company or have authority to act for the Company solely by virtue of being a Member. The Members shall not take part in the management of the business nor transact any business for the Company in their capacity as Members, nor shall they have power to sign for or to bind the Company; provided, however, the Members shall have the right to participate in certain decisions as provided herein. In the event that a Member is also an employee or agent of the Company, any activities of a Member in such capacity shall solely be under the supervision and direction of the Manager or other executive employees of the Company.

Section 6.2 Meetings & Voting by Members. Meetings of the Members shall be held, and voting shall be conducted, as determined by (i) the Manager or (ii) 10% of the interested members. Written notice of the meeting must be given not less than 10 days nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting. The only business that may be transacted at the meeting is as stated in the meeting notice.

The Members shall be authorized to vote concerning such matters as shall be specifically provided under the terms and conditions of this Agreement and such matters as shall be referred to the Members for voting by the Manager. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, the unanimous consent of the Members shall not be required with respect to any matter concerning the Company, and the vote of a Majority in Interest of all the Members shall constitute the approval of such matter by the Members. In no event shall an Interest Holder or other transferee of an Interest be entitled to vote with respect to such matters until such time as such Interest Holder or transferee shall be admitted to the Company as a Member.

Section 6.3 Review of Books & Records. The Manager shall be authorized to establish standards for the restriction of the accessibility to the Members or to any Interest Holders of the Company documents and information relating to the Company. This authority shall include the right to restrict accessibility to such information to a particular Member or Interest Holder in the event such Person, directly or indirectly, becomes engaged in, or has otherwise acquired an interest in, or an enterprise competitive with the Company's business. The Manager may maintain the confidentiality of trade secrets or any other information the disclosure of which the Manager believes in good faith to be detrimental or potentially damaging to the Company's business, or otherwise not in the best interests of the Company. The Manager, in its sole discretion, may determine what information shall be treated as confidential in nature and not available for review, such as information relating to the compensation of executive employees. The Manager also shall be authorized to restrict accessibility with respect to matters required by law or by agreement with a third party to be kept confidential. Subject to the foregoing restrictions, any Member shall be authorized to review and inspect Company documents and information that may be required by law to be subject to the review of members. A Member who is interested in reviewing such information shall be required to notify the Manager in writing at least ten business days prior to the date requested for the review. In such written notice, the Member shall be required to state the nature of the review and the purpose reasonably related to such Member's interest in the Company. Inspection and review shall be performed during normal business hours at the principal office of the Company. Any costs associated with such inspection, including any photocopying charges, shall be the responsibility of such Member.

Section 6.4 Representations & Warranties of Members. Each Member shall immediately notify the Manager if any of the statements made herein or in any subscription documents or questionnaires submitted with such Member's counterpart signature page to this Agreement shall become adversely affected or untrue in any material respect. Each of the Members represents and warrants to the Company as follows:

- The Member is the sole party in interest as to its participation in the Company;
- The Member is acquiring its Interest without any present intention of selling or otherwise disposing of such Interest at any particular time or on the happening of any particular event or circumstance, and that the Member has no reason to anticipate any change in circumstances or any other occasion or event

which would cause the sale or other disposition of any Interest. The Member acknowledges that the Interest acquired is subject to certain restrictions on Transfer described herein and, accordingly, is not an entirely liquid investment. The Member also represents and warrants that the Member has made an independent investigation with respect to the acquisition of such Interest and has reviewed the purchase with advisors, to the extent that it deemed such assistance advisable;

- The Member is not engaged in, nor otherwise holds an interest in, directly or indirectly, an enterprise competitive with the Company's business; and
- The Member understands that the Manager and the Company are represented in matters concerning the Company and this offering by common legal counsel. Accordingly, Members should not consider the common counsel of the Manager and the Company to be their independent counsel and should consult with their own legal counsel on all matters concerning the Company or an investment therein. The common legal counsel and other experts performing services for the Manager may also perform services for affiliates of the Manager.

Section 6.5 Covenants Concerning Confidentiality. Each of the Members recognizes that its relationship with the Company may provide the Member with specialized knowledge, which, if used in competition with the Company, could cause serious harm to the Company. Each of the Members acknowledges that the knowledge and information acquired by the Member concerning the Company's technology, ideas, strategies, services, finances, systems, forms, business methods and procedures, costs, prices, credit practices, existing and prospective contracts, personnel records, methods used and preferred by the Company's business and affiliates and all such other relevant business knowledge and information, whether written or otherwise, constitute a vital part of the Company's business and is confidential business information some of which may be trade secrets (hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the "Confidential Materials") except to the extent such information may be otherwise lawfully and readily available to the general public, and that such information may be acquired through its involvement and participation in the Company.

As a material inducement to the Company and the Manager to admit each of the Members to the Company, each of the Members covenants as follows:

The Member shall not at any time, without the written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, use, divulge, furnish, make available or disclose for any purpose whatsoever, any aspect concerning the Confidential Materials, which has been made available to the Member as a result of its association with the Company.

Upon the termination of the Member's affiliation with the Company, the Member will return all Confidential Materials, whether prepared by the Company or by the Members, that constitute records of the Company or that contain any information relating to the Company's business. Such records shall include, by way of illustration and not in limitation of such category of items, all financial statements, records, reports, books, lists, files, letters, memoranda, disks and other materials, and any information or data fixed in any tangible medium of expression from which can be perceived, reproduced, or otherwise communicated any information or data relating to the Company's business.

Section 7: Transfer of Interests

Section 7.1 General Restrictions. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, no Interest Holder at any time shall, voluntarily or involuntarily, transfer any of its Interest to any Person. In addition to the restrictions on the Transfer of specific classes of Interests set forth in this Section 7, no Interest Holder shall Transfer all or any portion of the Holder's Interest, or any rights with respect to such Interest, unless the following conditions are satisfied:

- The Manager approves the transfer;
- The Transfer will not require registration of the Interest under any Federal or State securities laws;
- The transferee delivers to the Company a written instrument agreeing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement;
- The Transfer will not result in the termination of the Company pursuant to Code Section 708;

- The Transfer will not result in the Company being subject to the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended: and
- The transferee or the transferor delivers the following information to the Company: (i) the transferee's taxpayer identification number; and (ii) the transferee's initial tax basis in the transferred Interest.

Section 7.2 Dissolution of Class A Member or Sale or Transfer of Interests. If a Class A Member (the "Selling Member") at any time receives a bona fide offer (the "Offer") from a third party (the "Prospective Purchaser") to purchase all or a portion of the Selling Member's said Interest (the "Offered Interest"), and the Selling Member desires to sell the Offered Interest to the Prospective Purchaser, the Selling Member first must deliver to the Company, written notice containing all material terms and conditions of the Offer and offering to sell the Offered Interest upon the terms set forth in the Offer. The recipients of said notice (collectively, the "Optionors"), then shall have the option to elect to purchase all (but not less than all) of the Offered Interest in accordance with the terms contained in the Offer, in the following order of priority: The Interest Holders owning any other Class A Interests, on a Pro Rata Basis among themselves, or, in such other proportions as they shall agree, shall have the right of refusal to purchase any remaining portion of the Offered Interest.

If any of the Optionors desire to purchase the Offered Interest, they must elect to exercise said option by sending written notice of such election to the Selling Member within fifteen business days after receiving notice of the Offer. If any of the Optionors exercise their option hereunder, settlement on the purchase of the Offered Interest shall occur within the later to occur of (a) 30 business days following the date of such notice or (b) the latest date for closing provided in the Offer.

If none of the Optionors purchases the Offered Interest in accordance with this Section 7.2, then the Selling Member shall have the right to Transfer the Offered Interest to the Prospective Purchaser, provided that:

- The Transfer is upon terms no more favorable to the Prospective Purchaser than those contained in the Offer:
- The Transfer is consummated within 60 days after the expiration of the time period during which the Company's option could have been exercised; and
- The conditions to Transfer set forth in Section 7.1 hereof are satisfied.

Section 7.3 Right of Refusal—Potential Class B and C Interests. If an Interest Holder of a potential Class B or Class C Interest (the "Offeror") at any time receives a bona fide offer (the "Offer") from a third party (the "Prospective Purchaser") to purchase all or a portion of the Offeror's Interest (the "Offered Interest"), and the Offeror desires to sell the Offered Interest to the Prospective Purchaser, the Offeror first must deliver to the Company written notice containing all material terms and conditions of the Offer and offering to sell the Offered Interest to the Company upon the terms set forth in the Offer. The Company, in the sole discretion of the Manager, then shall have the option to elect to purchase the Offered Interest in accordance with the terms contained in the Offer, by sending written notice thereof to the Offeror within fifteen (15) business days after receiving notice of the Offer. If the Company exercises its option hereunder, settlement on the purchase of the Offered Interest shall occur within the later to occur of (a) 30 business days following the date of such notice or (b) the latest date for closing provided in the Offer.

If the Company does not purchase the Offered Interest in accordance with this Section 7.3, then the Offeror shall have the right to Transfer the Offered Interest to the Prospective Purchaser, provided that:

The Transfer is upon terms no more favorable to the Prospective Purchaser than those contained in the Offer:

The Transfer is consummated within 60 days after the expiration of the time period during which the option could have been exercised; and

The conditions to Transfer set forth in Section 7.1 hereof are satisfied.

Section 7.4 Rights of Transferee to Become Member. Except as specifically provided in Sections (b) and (c) below, the transferee of an Interest in accordance with this Section 7 shall not, merely by virtue of being an Interest Holder, have the right to: (i) become a Member; or (ii) exercise any rights of a Member other than those specifically pertaining to the ownership of an economic interest in the Company.

Subject to the provisions of Sections 2.4 and 3.1 hereof, the transferee of a Class A Interest may become a Member only upon the prior written consent of a Majority in Interest of all the non-transferring Class A Members, whose consent may be withheld for any reason in its sole discretion.

The transferee of any Interest other than a Class A may become a Member only upon the prior written consent of the Manager, whose consent may be withheld for any reason in its sole discretion.

Section 7.5 Restriction on Potential Class B Interests. An Interest Holder of a potential Class B Interest shall have no right to Transfer all or any portion of its Class B Interest without obtaining the prior written consent of the Manager, which consent may be withheld for any reason in the Manager' sole discretion.

Section 7.6 Reasonableness of Restrictions: Void Transfers. Each Interest Holder acknowledges that the restrictions described in this Section 7 are reasonable in view of the purposes of the Company and the relationship of the Members. Any Transfer of an Interest that does not fully comply with all applicable provisions of this Agreement shall be null and void and without effect, ab initio. Any Person who claims to be the transferee of an Interest, or any Person to whom rights attributable to any such Interest are attempted to be transferred in violation of this Section, shall not be entitled to: vote on matters coming before the Members, participate in the management of the Company, act as an agent of the Company, receive distributions from the Company or have any other rights in or with respect to such Interest.

Section 7.7 Enforceability. It is recognized by the parties that the provisions of this Section 7 are of particular importance for the protection and promotion of their existing and future interests. The parties further acknowledge that the relationship of all of the Members is and will be such that, in the event of any breach of the restrictions and procedures set forth in this Agreement, a claim for monetary damages may not constitute adequate remedy and that irreparable damage would result if this Agreement were not enforced. If any dispute arises concerning the Transfer of an Interest in the Company, a preliminary restraining order and an injunction may be issued to restrain the Transfer pending determination of the controversy. Should any controversy arise concerning the right or obligation to purchase or sell any Interest in the Company, such right or obligation shall be enforceable in a court by a decree of specific performance. Such remedy shall be cumulative and not exclusive, and shall be in addition to any other remedy that the parties may have. No objection to the form of action or to the relief prayed for in any proceeding for the specific performance of this Agreement shall be raised by any party, in order that such relief may be obtained by the other party or parties not in breach hereunder.

Section 8: Cessation of Membership

Section 8.1 Voluntary Withdrawal. No Member or Interest Holder shall be entitled to Voluntarily Withdraw from the Company prior to the termination of the Company. No Member or Interest Holder shall be entitled to receive the fair market value of its Interest in the Company at any time prior to the termination of the Company except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 9.3 hereof upon the dissolution and winding up of the affairs of the Company.

Section 8.2 Involuntary Withdrawal. Immediately upon the occurrence of an Involuntary Withdrawal of a Member, the successor or legal representative of such Member shall not become a Member, but shall become an Interest Holder entitled to such rights (economic and otherwise) provided under the Act to the assignee of an interest in a limited liability company, except that such successor shall not be entitled to receive in liquidation of the Interest, pursuant to the Act, the fair market value of the Member's Interest as of the date of the Member's Involuntary Withdrawal from the Company.

Section 9: Dissolution & Winding Up

Section 9.1 Events of Dissolution of Company. Notwithstanding any provisions of the Act to the contrary, the Company shall be dissolved only upon the happening of any of the following events:

- Upon the expiration of the term of the Company as stated in the Articles of Organization;
- Upon the determination of a Majority in Interest of each class of Members that the Company shall be dissolved; or
- Upon such time as there are fewer than two Members of the Company.

Section 9.2 Continuation of Business. The cessation of membership by a Member of the Company shall not cause dissolution of the Company.

Section 9.3 Winding Up. If the Company is dissolved and the business of the Company is not continued in accordance with Section 9.1(c) hereof, the Manager shall wind up the Company's affairs. In the event of the liquidation of the Company, a reasonable time shall be allowed for the orderly liquidation of the assets of the Company and the discharge of liabilities. On winding up of the Company, the assets of the Company shall be distributed as follows:

- (a) To the payment of debts and liabilities of the Company (other than those owed to other Members) and the expenses of liquidation;
- (b) To the establishment and funding of such reserves as the Manager or the liquidating agent, if there be one, may reasonably deem necessary for contingent liabilities or obligations of the Company, provided that such reserves, or any part thereof, not required to be paid over for such contingent liabilities shall be distributed as hereinafter provided;
- (c) To the repayment of any loans or advances made by any Members to the Company (in proportion to their respective advances if the amount available for repayment shall be insufficient to satisfy all such advances); and

To each of the Interest Holders on account of such Interest Holder's Interest in the Company in an amount equal to each such Interest Holder's positive Capital Account balance immediately preceding the liquidation of the Company, but after giving effect to any tax allocations under Section 4.5 hereof and Exhibit C, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

It is the intention of the Members that the foregoing distributions under Sub-Paragraph (d) shall be in accordance with the distribution provisions set forth in Section 4 hereof. Each Interest Holder's Capital Account shall be adjusted for the Company's taxable year during which such liquidation occurs. Liquidating distributions shall be made by the end of such taxable year (or, if later, within 90 days after the date of such liquidation).

Section 9.4 No Obligation to Restore Deficit Account Balances. No Interest Holder shall be required to contribute to the capital of the Company any amount necessary to restore a deficit balance in such Interest Holder's Capital Account to zero. No Interest Holder shall have any rights of contribution with respect to any such deficit balances in any Interest Holder's Capital Account.

Section 9.5 Liquidating Agent or Trust. In the discretion of the Manager, a pro rata portion of the distributions that would otherwise be made to the Interest Holders under Section 9.3 hereof may be:

(a) Distributed to a trust established for the benefit of the Interest Holders for the purposes of liquidating Company assets, collecting amounts owed to the Company, and paying any contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Company to the Interest Holders arising out of or in connection with the Company. The assets of any such trust shall be distributed to the Interest Holders from time to time, in the reasonable discretion of the Manager, in accordance with the same priorities and in the same proportions as the amount distributed to such trust by the Company as would otherwise have been distributed to the Interest Holders pursuant to this Agreement; or

(b) Withheld to provide a reasonable reserve for Company liabilities (contingent or otherwise) to reflect the unrealized portion of installment obligations owed by the Company, provided that such withheld amounts shall be distributed to the Interest Holders as soon as practicable.

Section 9.6 Articles of Cancellation & Articles of Dissolution. If the Company is dissolved, the Manager promptly shall file Articles of Dissolution with the State of [State], and upon the mailing of proper notices, shall file Articles of Cancellation with the State of [State] concerning the termination of the Company. If there is no Manager remaining on the Manager, then the Articles of Cancellation shall be filed by the last Person to be a Member; if there are no remaining Members, nor a Person who last was a Member, then the Articles shall be filed by the legal or personal representative of the Person who last was a Member.

Section 10: Indemnification of the Managers

Section 10.1 General. The Company shall indemnify the Manager against all claims by Persons other than the Members or the Company which arise in connection with the business of the Company, including attorney's fees, and including any claim or liability arising by reason of an error of judgment, act, or omission of such party, whether or not disclosed to the Members, provided that the actions (or failure to act) of the Manager did not constitute gross negligence, willful misconduct, or willful misrepresentation with respect to such error, act, or omission. Advances from the Company for payment of costs and attorney's fees as incurred shall be authorized only if the action was initiated by a third party who is not a Member and the indemnitee agrees to repay the advanced funds to the Company in the event they are not entitled to indemnification hereunder. Any indemnification under this Section shall be recoverable only out of the assets of the Company, and no Member shall have any personal liability with respect thereto.

Section 10.2 Limitation of Liability. The Manager shall not be liable or accountable in damages to the Company or to any of the Interest Holders with respect to any act, omission, or error in judgment, whether or not constituting negligence, taken in its capacity as the Manager on behalf of the Company, except for any act or omission constituting gross negligence, willful misconduct, or willful misrepresentation.

Section 10.3 Successful Defense of Litigation. In addition to, and not in limitation of, any rights set forth in this Agreement or provided under the Act, the Manager, if successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any proceeding in which it was made a party by reason of acting in the capacity of the Board of Managers, shall be indemnified against reasonable expenses (including without limitation attorney's fees, other professional fees, court costs and travel costs) incurred by the Manager in connection with such proceeding.

Section 11: Power of Attorney for Limited Purposes

Section 11.1 Manager as Attorney-in-Fact. Each Interest Holder hereby makes, constitutes, and appoints the Manager, his/her/its true and lawful attorney-in-fact for such Interest Holder and in his/her/its name, place and stead and for his/her/its use and benefit, to sign, execute, certify, acknowledge, swear to, file, and record (a) this Agreement and all agreements, certificates, instruments and other documents amending or changing this Agreement as now or hereafter amended in accordance with this Agreement that the Manager may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate including, without limitation, amendments or changes to reflect: (i) the exercise by the Manager of any power granted to the Manager under this Agreement; (ii) any amendments adopted by the Members in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; (iii) the admission of any Member pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; and (iv) the disposition by any Member of an Interest in the Company; and (b) any certificates, instruments and documents as may be required by, or may be appropriate under the laws of the State of [State] or any other state or jurisdiction in which the Company is doing or intends to do business. Each Interest Holder authorizes such attorney-in-fact to take any further action that such attorney-in-fact shall consider

necessary or advisable in connection with any of the foregoing, hereby giving such attorney-in-fact full power and authority to do and perform each and every act or thing whatsoever requisite or advisable to be done and performed in connection with the foregoing as fully as such Interest Holder might or could do and perform personally, and hereby ratifying and confirming all that any such attorney-in-fact shall lawfully do and perform or cause to be done and performed by virtue thereof or hereof.

Section 11.2 Nature as Special Power. The power of attorney granted pursuant to this Section:

- Is a special power of attorney coupled with an interest, and is irrevocable;
- May be exercised by any such attorney-in-fact by listing the Interest Holders executing any agreement, certificate, instrument, or other document with the single signature of any such attorney-in-fact acting as attorney-in-fact for such Interest Holders; and
- Shall survive the death, disability, legal incapacity, Bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or cessation of existence of an Interest Holder and shall survive the delivery of an assignment by an Interest Holder of the whole or a portion of his/her/its interest in the Company, except that where the assignment is of such Interest Holder's entire interest in the Company and the assignee, with the consent of the Manager, is admitted to the Company as a Member, the power of attorney shall survive the delivery of such assignment for the sole purpose of enabling any such attorney-in-fact to effect such substitution.

Section 12: Amendment

Section 12.1 Required Vote as to Non-Economic Matters. With respect to any matters not specifically set forth in Section 12.2 hereof, the required vote for the approval of any proposed amendment to this Agreement shall be a Majority in Interest of the Members. The Manager, in consultation with the Company's legal counsel, shall make the determination of whether a proposed amendment shall constitute a matter for approval pursuant to this Section 12.1.

Section 12.2 Unanimous Consent for Certain Amendments. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 12.1 hereof, if the effect of any proposed amendment to this Agreement or to the Articles of Organization would be to increase the liability of the Members, or to change the contributions required of the Members, the rights and interest of any Member in distributions from the Company or any Members' rights upon liquidation of the Company, such proposed amendment shall be adopted only upon the unanimous written consent of all the Members.

Section 13: Miscellaneous Provisions

Section 13.1 Books. All of the books of account, records, and data, together with an executed copy of the Articles of Organization and any amendments thereto, shall at all times be maintained at the principal office of the Company, or at such other place as is designated by the Manager.

Section 13.2 Banking. All funds of the Company shall be deposited in its name in such checking account or in other accounts as shall be designated by the Manager. All withdrawals therefrom are to be made upon checks signed by those Persons who may from time to time be designated by the Manager.

Section 13.3 Accountants. All financial statements requiring delivery to the Members under this Agreement shall be audited by Certified Public Accountants chosen by the Manager. Such statements shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting procedures and elections as may be determined from time to time by the Manager in consultation with such accountants.

Section 13.4 Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given and effective three days following deposit of same in a receptacle of the United States Postal Service by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, or upon personal delivery or transmittal by electronic means. Notices shall be addressed as follows, or at such other addresses designated by notice to the Company: (i) if to the Company or to the Manager, at the principal office thereof set forth in Section 1.3 hereof; (ii) if to any Interest Holder, at the address set forth in Exhibit A, as may be amended from time to time.

Section 13.5 Further Assurances. The parties hereto shall execute, acknowledge and deliver such

further instruments the Manager may deem expedient or necessary in the operation of the Company and the achievement of its purpose, and shall perform such further acts and things as may be required or appropriate to carry out the intent and purpose of this Agreement.

Section 13.6 Integration. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties pertaining to its subject matter and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous verbal and written agreements and undertakings of the parties in connection therewith.

Section 13.7 Binding Effect. Except as otherwise provided herein and subject to the restrictions on assignment set forth herein, all provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by and against the parties hereto and each of their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors, and assigns.

Section 13.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall constitute one Agreement, binding on all the parties hereto, even though all the parties are not signatories to the original or the same counterpart. In addition, this Agreement may contain more than one counterpart of the signature page and this Agreement may be executed by the affixing of the signatures of each of the Members to one of such counterpart signature pages; all of such signature pages shall be read as though one, and they shall have the same force and effect as though all of the signers had signed a single signature page.

Section 13.9 Headings. The headings of the sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience or reference only and shall not be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

Section 13.10 Agency. Except as provided herein, nothing herein contained shall be construed to constitute any Member hereof the agent of any other Member hereof or to restrict the Members from carrying on their own respective businesses or activities.

Section 13.11 Gender. Wherever appropriate, any reference herein to the singular shall include the plural, any reference to the masculine shall include the feminine gender, and any reference to "it" shall include "his" or "her" or vice versa, as the case may be.

Section 13.12 Reimbursement for Company Expenses. The Company shall reimburse any Member or an Affiliate of any Member who has, prior to or after the execution of this Agreement, made payments for or on behalf of the Company, subject, however, to the terms of any other agreements of such Members with the Company.

Section 13.13 Severability. Every provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If any term or provision hereof is illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity or legality of the remainder of this Agreement.

Section 13.14 Incorporation by Reference. Every exhibit, schedule, or appendix attached to this Agreement and referenced herein is hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

Section 13.15 Applicable Law. The laws of the State of [State] shall govern the validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms and the interpretation of the rights and duties of the Members.

Counterpart Signature Page to Operating Agreement

This Counterpart Signature Page, when duly executed by the undersigned and attached to that certain Operating Agreement of [Company], LLC, shall make the undersigned a party to said Agreement and shall bind the undersigned to the terms and conditions of said Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Operating Agreement as of the day and year first above written and executed this Counterpart Signature Page as of the date written below.

[Company], LLC	
By:	
[Owner/Founder], Manager	
State [State]	
SS.	
County	
undersigned officer, personally appeared [Owner	2005, before me,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my	hand and official seal.
Notary Public	
My Commission Expires	

Exhibit A: Capital Contribution

❖ Below is an embedded Excel spreadsheet – double-click on it to open and edit.

Class A Member(s)	Address	Units	%	
[Owner/Founder]	address	100,000	16.5%	
[Founder 2]	address	100,000	16.5%	
Founder/Partner	address	100,000	16.5%	
Founder/Partner	address	100,000	16.5%	
Founder/Partner	address	100,000	16.5%	
Founder/Partner	address	100,000	16.5%	
Class B Members				
Member Name	address	1,000	0.2%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Member Name	address	-	0.0%	
Class C Members		Units		
Investor		5,000	0.8%	
Investor			0.0%	
Investor			0.0%	
Total Units 606,000				
		, -	100%	

Exhibit B: Definitions

For purposes of the Operating Agreement of [Company], LLC, and the Exhibits attached thereto, the following terms shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the meanings specified in this Exhibit B.

"Act" means the [State] Limited Liability Company Act, as amended from time to time.

"Adjusted Capital Account Deficit" means, with respect to any Interest Holder, the deficit balance, if any, in the Interest Holder's Capital Account as of the end of the relevant taxable year, after giving effect to the following adjustments: (a) the deficit shall be decreased by the amounts which the Interest Holder is obligated to restore pursuant to Section 1 of Exhibit C to the Agreement, or is deemed obligated to restore pursuant to Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(c); and (b) the deficit shall be increased by the items described in Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)-(d)(4), (5) and (6).

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Member, any Person: (a) which owns more than 50% of the voting interests of the Member; (b) in which the Member owns more than 50% of the voting interests; or (c) in which more than 50% of the voting interests are owned by a Person that has a familial or business relationship with the Member.

"Agreement" or "Operating Agreement" means the Operating Agreement of the Company, as it may be amended from time to time.

"Bankruptcy," "Bankrupt" and derivations thereof, means the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the applicable Person: (a) the Person makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (b) the Person files a voluntary petition of bankruptcy; (c) the Person is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent or there is entered against the Person an order for relief in any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding; (d) the Person files a petition or answer seeking for the Person any reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any statute, law or regulation; (e) the Person seeks, consents to or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee for, receiver for or liquidation of the Person or of all or any substantial part of the Person's properties; (f) any proceeding against the Person seeking reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any statute, law or regulation, which continues for 120 days after the commencement thereof, or the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for the Person or all or any substantial part of the Person's properties without the Person's agreement or acquiescence, which appointment is not vacated or stayed for 120 days or, if the appointment is stayed, for 120 days after the expiration of the stay the appointment is not vacated; not only to an adjudication, finding or determination of bankruptcy under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, but also to an adjudication of insolvency under any state or local insolvency procedure.

"Capital Account" means an account for each Interest Holder maintained on the books of the Company in accordance with the following provisions: (a) An Interest Holder's Capital Account shall be credited with the Interest Holder's Capital Contributions, the amount of any Company liabilities assumed by the Interest Holder (or which are secured by Company property distributed to the Interest Holder), the Interest Holder's distributive share of Net Profits and any item in the nature of income or gain specially allocated to such Interest Holder pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C to the Agreement (other than Section 6 thereof); (b) An Interest Holder's Capital Account shall be debited with the amount of money and the Gross Asset Value of any Company property distributed to the Interest Holder, the amount of any liabilities of the Interest Holder assumed by the Company (or which are secured by property contributed by the Interest Holder to the Company), the Interest Holder's distributive share of Net Losses and any item in the nature of expenses or losses specially allocated to such Interest Holder pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C to the Agreement; (c) In the event of the Transfer of an Interest in accordance with the Agreement, the transferee shall succeed to the Capital Account of the transferor to the extent the

Capital Account is attributable to the transferred Interest; (d) If the book value of Company property is adjusted pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C to the Agreement, the Capital Account of each Interest Holder shall be adjusted to reflect the aggregate adjustment in the same manner as if the Company had recognized gain or loss equal to the amount of such aggregate adjustment; and (e) It is intended that the Capital Accounts of all Interest Holders shall be maintained and adjusted in accordance with the Code and the Regulations promulgated thereunder, and all provisions of the Agreement relating to the maintenance of Capital Accounts shall be interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with those Regulations. In determining the amount of liabilities for purposes of the foregoing, there shall be taken into account Code Section 752(c) and any other applicable provisions of the Code or Regulations.

"Capital Contribution" means, with respect to any Member, the total amount of cash and the fair market value of any other assets contributed (or deemed contributed under Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(d)) as capital to the Company with respect to the Interest held by such Member, net of liabilities assumed or to which the contributed assets may be subject at the time of such contribution.

"Capital Transaction" means any transaction not in the ordinary course of business which results in the Company's receipt of cash or other consideration other than Capital Contributions, including, without limitation, proceeds of sales or exchanges or other dispositions of assets not in the ordinary course of business, financings, refinancings, condemnations, recoveries of damage awards, and insurance proceeds.

"Class A Member(s)," "Class B Member(s)," or "Class C Member(s)," shall mean an individual Member or the group of Members collectively, who own(s) an Interest or the Interests belonging to the referenced class.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Any reference to a section thereof shall be deemed to include any corresponding tax provision in statutory codes of any state or a political subdivision thereof, or [State], and shall be deemed to include any corresponding provision of any future Internal Revenue Codes of the United States.

"Company" means the limited liability company formed and continued under the Agreement.

"Depreciation" means, for each Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the depreciation, amortization, or other cost recovery deduction allowable with respect to an asset for such Fiscal Year, except that if the Gross Asset Value of an asset differs from its adjusted basis for federal income tax purposes at the beginning of such Fiscal Year, Depreciation shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to such beginning Gross Asset Value as the federal income tax depreciation, amortization, or other cost recovery deduction for such Fiscal Year bears to such beginning adjusted tax basis; provided, however, that if the adjusted basis for federal income tax purposes of an asset at the beginning of such Fiscal Year is zero, Depreciation shall be determined with reference to such beginning Gross Asset Value using any reasonable method selected by the Manager.

"Executive Employee" means an employee of the Company to whom the Manager has delegated specific duties and authority to carry out the operation and management of the Company's business.

"Fiscal Year" means any of the applicable periods ending on December 31 during the existence of the Company, or any other applicable period for which the Company shall close its books and records for accounting and tax reporting purposes.

"Gross Asset Value" means, with respect to any asset, the asset's adjusted basis for federal income tax purposes, except as follows:

- (a) The initial Gross Asset Value of any asset contributed by a Member to the Company as a Capital Contribution shall be the gross fair market value of such asset, as determined by the contributing Member and the Manager;
- (b) The Gross Asset Values of all Company assets shall be adjusted to equal their respective gross fair market values, as determined by the Manager, as of the following times: (i) the acquisition of

an additional interest in the Company by any new or existing Interest Holder in exchange for more than a de minimis Capital Contribution, (ii) the distribution by the Company to an Interest Holder of more than a de minimis amount of Property as consideration for an Interest in the Company; and (iii) the liquidation of the Company within the meaning of Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(g), provided, however, that adjustments pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) above shall be made only if the Manager reasonably determines that such adjustments are necessary or appropriate to reflect the relative economic interests of the Interest Holders;

The Gross Asset Value of any Company asset distributed to any Interest Holder shall be adjusted to equal the gross fair market value of such asset on the date of distribution as determined by the distributee and the Manager; and

The Gross Asset Values of Company assets shall be increased (or decreased) to reflect any adjustments to the adjusted basis of such assets pursuant to Code Section 734(b) or Code Section 743(b), but only to the extent that such adjustments are taken into account in determining Capital Accounts pursuant to Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(m), as promulgated pursuant to the Code and Section 30(f) hereof and Section 3(g) of Exhibit C to the Agreement; provided, however, that Gross Asset Values shall not be adjusted pursuant to this Section to the extent the Manager determines that an adjustment pursuant to Section (b) hereof is necessary or appropriate in connection with a transaction that would otherwise result in an adjustment pursuant to this Section. If the Gross Asset Value of an asset has been determined or adjusted pursuant to Section (a) or (b) hereof, such Gross Asset Value shall thereafter be adjusted by the Depreciation taken into account with respect to such asset for purposes of computing Net Profits and Net Losses.

"Interest" means an Interest Holder's entire economic right, title, and ownership interest in the Company at any particular time.

"Interest Holder" means any Person who owns an Interest, whether as a Member or as an unadmitted economic transferee of or successor-in-interest to an Interest.

"Involuntary Withdrawal" means, with respect to any Member, the occurrence of any of the following events:

- (a) The Member becomes bankrupt;
- (b) If the Member is an individual, the Member's death or the adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction that the Member is incompetent to manage the Member's person or property;
- (c) If the Member is acting as a Member by virtue of being a trustee of a trust, the termination of the trust:
- (d) If the Member is a partnership or another limited liability company, the dissolution and commencement of winding up of the partnership or limited liability company;
- (e) If the Member is a corporation, the dissolution of the corporation or the revocation of its charter; or
- (f) If the Member is an estate, the distribution by the fiduciary of the estate's entire interest in the limited liability company.

"LLC" refers to the Company, [Company], LLC.

"LLC Minimum Gain" has the same meaning as "Partnership Minimum Gain" set forth in Regulations Sections 1.704-2(b)(2) and 1.704-2(d),. LLC Minimum Gain shall be computed separately for each Interest Holder in a manner consistent with the Regulations under Code Section 704(b).

"Majority in Interest" means the Members that own, in the aggregate, more than 50% of all the Percentage Interests in the Company or of all the Percentage Interests belonging to the applicable class of Members.

"Member(s)" means, individually and collectively, each Person who executes the Agreement and is admitted to the Company as a Member in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement.

"Member Non-recourse Debt" has the meaning for "Partner Nonrecourse Debt" set forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(b)(4).

"Member Non-recourse Debt Minimum Gain" means an amount, with respect to each Member Nonrecourse Debt, equal to the LLC Minimum Gain that would result if such Member Nonrecourse Debt were treated as a Nonrecourse Liability, determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(3).

"Member Non-recourse Deductions" has the meaning for "Partner Nonrecourse Deductions" set forth in Regulations Sections 1.704-2(i)(1) and 1.704-2(i)(2).

"Net Available Cash Flow" means:

- (a) All cash receipts as shown on the books of the Company for any Fiscal Year (excluding Capital Contributions from Members, proceeds of Company loans or borrowing, excess financing proceeds, or net proceeds to the Company from the sale or the disposition of any of the assets of the Company), reduced by cash disbursements in such Fiscal Year for Company purposes including all costs and expenses associated with the conduct of the business of the Company, all payments made on account of and with respect to Company loans and borrowings, all costs and expenses of Company financing and all costs and expenses of operating and managing the assets of the Company, all loans and advances made by the Company and all cash reserves set aside by the Manager, which shall be deemed in its sole discretion, reasonable and necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Company's business; or
- (b) Any other funds other than Net Available Cash Flow, including amounts previously set aside as reserves, deemed available for distribution in the sole discretion of the Manager.

"Net Capital Proceeds" means the gross receipts received by the Company from a Capital Transaction, less any and all amounts that the Manager determines, in its sole discretion, are necessary for the payment of or due provision for (a) the liabilities of the Company to all creditors, including the expenses of the Capital Transaction, and/or (b) additional requirements for funds in connection with the Company's business. Net Capital Proceeds in any Fiscal Year will include any amounts of receipts from a Capital Transaction received in prior Fiscal Years and previously set aside as reserves by the Manager, deemed available at the sole discretion of the Manager for distribution to the Interest Holders.

"Net Profits" and "Net Losses" means, for each Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the Company's taxable income or loss for such Fiscal Year, determined in accordance with Code Section 703(a) (for this purpose, all items of income, gain, loss or deduction required to be stated separately pursuant to Code Section 703(a)(1) shall be included in taxable income or loss), with the following adjustments:

- (a) Any income of the Company that is exempt from federal income tax and not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profits or Net Losses pursuant to this Section shall be allocated separately among the Interest Holders and shall not be added to such taxable income or loss;
- (b) Any expenditures of the Company described in Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) or treated as Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) expenditures pursuant to Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(i), and not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profits or Net Losses pursuant to this Section shall be subtracted from such taxable income or loss:
- (c) In the event the Gross Asset Value of any Company asset is adjusted pursuant to Section 15(b) or (c) hereof, the amount of such adjustment shall be taken into account as gain or loss from the disposition of such asset for purposes of computing Net Profits or Net Losses;

- (d) Gain or loss resulting from any disposition of Property with respect to which gain or loss is recognized for federal income tax purposes shall be computed by reference to the Gross Asset Value of the property disposed of, notwithstanding that the adjusted tax basis of such property differs from its Gross Asset Value;
- (e) In lieu of the depreciation, amortization and other cost recovery deductions taken into account in computing such taxable income or loss, there shall be taken into account Depreciation for such Fiscal Year, computed in accordance with Section 15 hereof;
- (f) To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis of any Company asset pursuant to Code Section 734(b) or Code Section 743(b) is required pursuant to Regulations Section 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv)(m)(4), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts as a result of a distribution other than in complete liquidation of an Interest Holder's Interest, the amount of such adjustment shall be treated as an item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the adjustment decreases the basis of the asset) from the disposition of the asset and shall be taken into account for purposes of computing Net Profits or Net Losses; and
- (g) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, any items which are specially allocated pursuant to Section 3 or 4 of Exhibit C to the Agreement shall not be taken into account in computing Net Profits or Net Losses. The amounts of the items of Company income, gain, loss or deduction available to be specially allocated pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 of Exhibit C to the Agreement shall be determined by applying rules analogous to those set forth in Sections (a) through (g) above.

"Non-recourse Deductions" has the meaning set forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(b)(1).

"Non-recourse Liability" has the meaning set forth in Regulations Section 1.752-l(a)(2).

"Percentage Interest(s)" means the percentage which the Interest(s) of the applicable Member or Interest Holder, or group of Members or Interest Holders, bears to the entire applicable group of Members or Interest Holders, as set forth in Exhibit A.

"Person" means any individual, estate, corporation, partnership, association, Limited Liability Company, trust, or other entity.

"Pro Rata Basis" means an allocation of the referenced distributions, tax items, dilution or other item among the group of Members or Interest Holders being referred to proportionate with said Persons' relative Percentage Interests.

"Regulations" means the Regulations of the U.S. Department of Treasury promulgated under the Code.

"Transfer" means, when used as a noun, any voluntary or involuntary sale, hypothecation, pledge, assignment, attachment, gift or other disposition, and, when used as a verb, means, voluntarily or involuntarily to sell, hypothecate, pledge, assign, permit the attachment of or otherwise dispose of.

"Voluntary Withdrawal" means a Member's dissociation with the Company by means other than a Transfer or an Involuntary Withdrawal.

Exhibit C: Tax Allocations

Section 1. Net Profits

After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Sections 3 and 4 of this Exhibit C, Net Profits for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated among all of the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis.

Section 2. Net Losses

After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Sections 3 and 4 of this Exhibit C, Net Losses for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated as set forth in Section 2(a) hereof, subject to the limitation in Section 2(b) hereof.

(a) Net Losses for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated in the following order and priority: (i) first, to all of the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (1) the cumulative Net Profits allocated pursuant to this Section for all prior Fiscal Years, over (2) The cumulative Net Losses allocated pursuant to this Section for all prior Fiscal Years; and (ii) The balance, if any, to all of the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis.

The Net Losses allocated pursuant to Section 2(a) of this Exhibit C shall not exceed the maximum amount of Net Losses that can be so allocated without causing any Interest Holder to have an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit at the end of any Fiscal Year. In the event some but not all of the Interest Holders would have Adjusted Capital Account Deficits as a consequence of an allocation of Net Losses pursuant to Section 2(a) of this Exhibit C, the limitation set forth in this Section 2(b) shall be applied on an Interest Holder by Interest Holder basis so as to allocate the maximum permissible Net Losses to each Interest Holder under Regulations Section 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d). All Net Losses in excess of the limitations set forth in this Section 2(b) shall be allocated to all of the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis.

Section 3. Special Allocations.

The following special allocations shall be made in the following order:

Minimum Gain Chargeback. Except as otherwise provided in Regulations Section 1.704-2(f), and notwithstanding any other provision of this Exhibit C, if there is a net decrease in LLC Minimum Gain during any Fiscal Year, each Interest Holder shall be specially allocated items of Company income and gain for such Fiscal Year (and, if necessary, subsequent Fiscal Years) in an amount equal to such Interest Holder's share of the net decrease in LLC Minimum Gain, determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(g). The items to be so allocated shall be determined in accordance with Regulations Sections 1.704-2(f)(6) and 1.704-2(j)(2). This Section is intended to comply with the minimum gain chargeback requirement in Regulations Section 1.704-2(f), and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

Member Minimum Gain Chargeback. Except as otherwise provided in Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4), notwithstanding any other provision of this Exhibit C, if there is a net decrease in Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain attributable to a Member Nonrecourse Debt during any Company Fiscal Year, each Interest Holder who has a share of the Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain attributable to such Member Nonrecourse Debt, determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(5), shall be specially allocated items of Company income and gain for such Fiscal Year (and, if necessary, subsequent Fiscal Years) in an amount equal to such Person's share of the net decrease in Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain attributable to such Member Nonrecourse Debt, determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4). Allocations pursuant to the previous sentence shall be made in proportion to the respective amounts required to be allocated to each Interest Holder pursuant thereto. The items to be so allocated shall be determined in accordance with Regulations Sections 1.704-2(i)(4) and 1.704-2(j)(2). This Section 3(b) is intended to comply with the minimum gain chargeback

requirement in Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4), and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

Qualified Income Offset. In the event any Interest Holder unexpectedly receives any adjustments, allocations or distributions described in Regulations Sections 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d)(5), or 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d)(6), items of Company income and gain shall be specially allocated to each such Interest in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate, to the extent required by the Regulations, the Adjusted Capital Account Deficit of such Interest Holder as quickly as possible, provided that an allocation pursuant to this Section 3(c) shall be made only if and to the extent that such Interest Holder would have an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit after all other allocations provided for in this Exhibit C have been tentatively made as if this Section 3 were a part of the Agreement.

Gross Income Allocation. In the event any Interest Holder has a deficit Capital Account at the end of any Company Fiscal Year which is in excess of the sum of (i) the amount such Interest Holder is obligated to restore pursuant to any provision of the Operating Agreement, and (ii) the amount such Interest Holder is deemed to be obligated to restore pursuant to the penultimate sentences of Regulations Sections 1.704-2(g)(1) and 1.704-2(i)(5), each such Interest Holder shall be specially allocated items of Company income and gain in the amount of such excess as quickly as possible, provided that an allocation pursuant to this Section 3(d) shall be made only if and to the extent that such Interest Holder would have a deficit Capital Account in excess of such sum after all other allocations provided for in this Exhibit C have been made as if Section 3(c) and (d) of this Exhibit C were not in the Agreement.

Nonrecourse Deductions. Nonrecourse Deductions for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated to all of the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis.

Member Nonrecourse Deductions. Any Member Nonrecourse Deductions for any Fiscal Year shall be specially allocated to the Interest Holder who bears the economic risk of loss with respect to the Member Nonrecourse Debt to which such Member Nonrecourse Deductions are attributable in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(1).

Section 754 Adjustments. To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis of any Company asset pursuant to Code Section 734(b) or Code Section 743(b), is required (pursuant to Regulations Sections 1.704 - l(b)(2)(iv)(m)(2) or 1.704 - l(b)(2)(iv)(m)(2), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts as the result of a distribution to an Interest Holder in complete liquidation of its interest in the Company, the amount of such adjustment to Capital Accounts shall be treated as an item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the adjustment decreases such basis) and such gain or loss shall be specially allocated to the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis or in the event that Regulations Section 1.704 - l(b)(2)(iv)(m)(2), applies, or to the Interest Holder to whom such distribution was made in the event that Regulations Section 1.704 - l(b)(2)(iv)(m)(4), applies.

Preferred Return Allocations. In the event, at any time and for any reason, there arises a disproportion in the Capital Account balances of the Interest Holders, then prior to the liquidation of the Company, in accordance with Section 9 of the Operating Agreement, or at such earlier times and in such amounts as the Manager shall determine in its sole discretion, all or a portion of the remaining items of Company income or gain, if any, shall be specially allocated among the Interest Holders in such manner necessary to bring the Capital Account balances of the Interest Holders into proportion with their then existing Percentage Interests.

Allocations Relating to Taxable Issuance of Interests. Any income, gain, loss or deduction realized as a direct or indirect result of the issuance of an Interest by the Company to an Interest Holder (the "Issuance Items") shall be allocated among the Interest Holders so that, to the extent possible, the net amount of such Issuance Items, together with all other allocations under the Operating Agreement to each Interest Holder, shall be equal to the net amount that would have been allocated to each such Interest Holder if the Issuance Items had not been realized.

Section 4. Curative Allocations. The allocations set forth in Sections 2(b), 3(a), 3(b), 3(c), 3(d), 3(e), 3(f) and 3(g) of this Exhibit C (the "Regulatory Allocations") are intended to comply with certain

requirements of the Regulations. It is the intent of the Members that, to the extent possible, all Regulatory Allocations shall be offset either with other Regulatory Allocations or with special allocations of other items of Company income, gain, loss or deduction pursuant to this Section 4.

Therefore, notwithstanding any other provision of this Exhibit C (other than the Regulatory Allocations), the Manager shall make such offsetting special allocations of Company income, gain, loss or deduction in whatever manner it determines appropriate so that, after such offsetting allocations are made, each Interest Holder's Capital Account balance is, to the extent possible, equal to the Capital Account balance such Interest Holder would have had if the Regulatory Allocations were not part of the Agreement and all Company items were allocated pursuant to Sections 1, 2(a) and 3(h) hereof. In exercising its discretion under this Section 4, the Manager shall take into account future Regulatory Allocations under Sections 3(a) and 3(b) that, although not yet made, are likely to offset other Regulatory Allocations previously made under Sections 3(e) and 3(f).

Section 5. Other Allocation Rules

For purposes of determining the Net Profits, Net Losses, or any other items allocable to any period, Net Profits, Net Losses, and any such other items shall be determined on a daily, monthly or other basis, as determined by the Manager, using any permissible method under Code Section 706 and the Regulations thereunder.

All allocations to the Interest Holders pursuant to this Exhibit C, except as otherwise provided, shall be divided among them on a Pro Rata Basis.

The Interest Holders are aware of the income tax consequences of the allocations made by this Exhibit C and hereby agree to be bound by the provisions of this Exhibit C in reporting their shares of Company income and loss for income tax purposes.

Solely for purposes of determining an Interest Holder's proportionate share of the "excess nonrecourse liabilities" of the Company within the meaning of Regulations Section 1.752-3(a)(3), the Interest Holders' interests in Company profits shall be deemed to be on a Pro Rata Basis.

To the extent permitted by Regulations Section 1.704-2(h)(3), the Manager shall endeavor to treat distributions of Net Available Cash Flow or Net Capital Proceeds as having been made from the proceeds of a Nonrecourse Liability or a Member Nonrecourse Debt only to the extent that such distributions would cause or increase an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit for any Interest Holder.

Any income of the Company that is exempt from federal income tax and not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profits or Net Losses pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or any Exhibits thereto shall be allocated separately to all of the Interest Holders on a Pro Rata Basis.

Section 6. Tax Allocations: Code Section 704 (c)

In accordance with Code Section 704 (c) and the Regulations thereunder, income, gain, loss, and deduction with respect to any property contributed to the capital of the Company, solely for tax purposes, shall be allocated among the Interest Holders so as to take account of any variation between the adjusted basis of such property to the Company for federal income tax purposes and its initial Gross Asset Value (computed in accordance with Section 14(a) of Exhibit B to the Operating Agreement). In the event the Gross Asset Value of any Company asset is adjusted pursuant to Section 14(b) of Exhibit A to the Operating Agreement, subsequent allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction with respect to such asset shall take account of any variation between the adjusted basis of such asset for federal income tax purposes and its Gross Asset Value in the same manner as under Code Section 704(c) and the Regulations thereunder. Any elections or other decisions relating to such allocations shall be made by the Manager in any manner that reasonably reflects the purpose and intention of the Operating Agreement. Allocations pursuant to this Section 6 are solely for purposes of federal, state and local taxes and shall not affect, or in any way be taken into account in computing, any Person's Capital Account or

share of Net Profits, Net Losses, other items or distributions pursuant to any provision of this Agreement.

The Limited Liability Company membership interests have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act") or any State securities laws, or the laws of any other nation or jurisdiction, and may not be sold or otherwise transferred unless the same have been included in an effective registration statement under the Act or such laws, or an opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Manager of the Company, has been rendered to the Company, that an exemption from registration under applicable securities laws is available. In addition, transfer or other disposition of the Limited Liability Company membership interests is restricted as provided in the Operating Agreement.

Execution Page

For The Operating Agreement Of [Company], LLC

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Operating Agreement in multiple counterparts as of the day and in the year first above written, and each of such counterparts, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SIGNATURE OF THE INITIAL MANAGER

BY:	DATE:	
[Owner/Founder], Initial Manager	<i>DATE</i> .	
SIGNATURE OF THE MEMBER		
BY:	DATE:	
Name & Title of Member (Please Print)		
Address		
Telephone #	Fax #	
Email Address		